Northwood, NH
Board of Selectmen Agenda
July 11%, 2023

You may also watch the meeting live on the Town Website at this link:

https://livestream.com/accounts/28706232 /events/8784532/ player?width=640&height=3608&enab
lelnfoAndActivity=true&defaultDrawer=&auntoPlay=trued&mute=false

6:00pm Call to Order, Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Citizen's Forum (15-minute limit, 3 minutes/speaker)
ONGOING BUSINESS

s Approve Minutes
June 27th, 2023

6:30PM Public Hearings - Community Development Block Grant Request — One Sky
Service Rehabilitation Project.

e Consent Agenda

TA Report/Items for Board Action

OLD BUSINESS

Review for Action: Cable TV Franchise Agreement One Year Extension — Action Required
NEW BUSINESS

Review for Action: Emergency Management Director Vacancy
Board Task Manager

Board Committee Reports.

Citizen's Forum (15-minute limit, 3 minutes/speaker)
Nonpublic Session if needed RSA 91-A:311 () and ().
Adjournment

*Any person requiring interpretive or other accommodation is asked to contact the
Town Office at least 48 hours prior to the start of the meeting.



w oo~ s W

I
= O

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

31 -

32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42

DRAFT

TOWN OF NORTHWOOD
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
Town of Northwood 818 First NH Turnpike Northwood, NH 03261
(603) 942-5586

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
June 27, 2023

ROLL CALL: Chairman Hal Kreider, Vice-Chairman Tim Colby (arrived at 6:07), Select Board Member Beth
Boudreau, Select Board Member Jim Guzofski, and Select Board Member Pam Sanderson.

STAFF PRESENT: Town Administrator Walier Johnson

6:00 P.M. Chairman Kreider opened the Northwood Board of Selectmen meeting with a roll call and led
the pledge of allegiance.

Citizen’s Forum:

Jim Hadley of Old Mountain Road gave the Board a two-page handout. He stated that several days ago
he sent an email to the Selectman and Town Administrator about a pothole on his street. in his handout
he wants to make sure the Board is aware of the town’s responsibility for fixing potholes in a timely
manner, and if not, the town’s liability. He first noticed the pothele on May 24. He waited two weeks
hefore he contacted the highway supervisor. The statute states you contact either the Selectmen or the
Highway Supervisor. He contacted him and waited two weeks and didn’t hear anything. That is when he
sent the email back to him and the Selectmen and the Town Administrator. Whenever he has had road
issues in the past, he has just called the Road Agent and he would do whatever had to be done the next
day. It tock the town officially 17 days to fix the pothole, after being legally noticed as required by law.,
That was between June 6 and June 23 and the town may be liable for any damages to vehicles such as
front ends that may have been damaged by the pothole. There are about 30 housing units beyond the
location of the pothole on Old Mountain Road. That does not include the addition of UPS trucks, and there
is a veterinarian and a dog boarding company up there that gets a lot of traffic. He is asking the Board to
take the time to be aware of these statutes and understand the importance they are to the Northwood
traveling public.

H. Kreider read the following email: “I wanted to bring your attention to the situation at Bennett Bridge
Beach. Since 2020 the lines in the parking area have bene wearing away and are now nonexistent. | realize
that Chris Brown is working under a Highway budget that does not allow him a lot of wiggle room for
things like parking lines on a beach when there are so many road needs, However, it is getting to be a
real problem as people just park anyway and anywhere. On Sunday, we had the most people we have
ever seen. They were parked everywhere. Some parked haphazardly in the parking area while other

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 7
Draft June 27, 2023



43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90

DRAFT

parked on both sides of the road, including in front of the mailboxes which are passed the beach. When 1
can home around 2:30 p.m. | had to drive very slowly to fit between and get around the cars to be able to
go home. No emergency vehicles would have been able to fit through. We live close enough that we walk
to the beach, but if the volume continues this is a problem with no clear parking marked and could be a
safety hazard. Based on the lack of road budget, is there anything the town can do or anything we can do
to help? Thanks so much, Marlene Brown.”

T. Colby arrived at the meeting.

Town Clerk — Dog Warrant:

Town Clerk/Tax Collector Marisa Russo presented the warrant for 116 unlicensed dogs for 2023 to the
Selectboard for signatures. Civil forfeitures will be served by the Police. B. Boudreau stated that the clerk
has put out many notices regarding the deadline for filing. The consensus of the Board is to sign the
warrant. TA Johnson stated that the serving of all these civil forfeitures is a huge burden on the police
department, especially since they have been shorthanded for several years. If residents would register
their dogs in a timely manner, it would free up a lot of time for the officers at the police department. This
dog licensing is not a town law. It is a state faw that requires the police to serve the notices. The town
receives $2.00 for each dog registered and it will cost over $60 an hour for an officer to go to houses to
deliver the civil forfeiture notices. This will cost the town a lot of money in the long run. M. Russo stated
she is not informed if an animal has passed away, or been relocated, unless the owner tells her.

Approve Minutes:

Motion: “To approve the minutes of June 13, 2023, as presented.”
Motion: P. Sanderson

Second: T. Colby

Motion carried by vote of 5 to 0.

Consent Agenda:

Accounts Payable Manifest dated June 21, 2023, Batch #120 for $78,301.20. liems of note include
payments to Hodgkins Painting & Maintenance for $4,000 for lawn maintenance for the cemeteries and
public facilities, payment to the IRS for $12,984.78 for employee taxes, and NH Retirement System for
$46,565.91 for employee retirement contributions. '

Payroll Manifest dated June 28, 2023, Batch # 062823 for § 51,370.96

Accounts Payable Manifest dated June 28, 2023, batch 121 for $12,193.32, This consists of payments to

‘the IRS of $12,029.90 and Healthtrust for $163.46.

Abatements: Approve or Deny per Assessor’s Recommendations
Map 216, Lot 34 — 113 School Street — Advent Christian Church
Map 234, Lot 77 — 185 First NH Tpke — Irving Oil

Others:

Intent to Cut — Map 212, Lot 65 — Hamm

Intent to Cut — Map 213, Lots 1 & 2- Johnson

Seasonal Camper Permit — Map 125, Lot 62 — Fagan

Land Use Change Tax — Map 224-8-1 — Binette

Land Use Change Tax — Map 119-2 — Sargent

Land Use Change Tax— Map 119-10 — Thibeault

Land Use Change Tax — Map 119-12 — Blais

Land Use Change Tax — Map 119-13 — Atherton

Land Use Change Tax — Map 119-14 — Harrison

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 7
Draft June 27, 2023



91

92

93

94

95

96

a7

98

99
100
101
102
163
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
ile
117
118
115
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138

DRAFT

Reimbursement Requests to the Trustees of the Trust Funds:

Lagoon Maintenance ETF - $3,750 — for payments to Round Pond Soil Survey

Road Improvement ETF - $3,514.70 — for payments to Benevento Aggregates and Radford Messenger
Aquatic Invasive Species Prevention ETF—3,250.00 —for payments to Pleasant Lake Preservation Assn and
NH Lakes on behalf of Harvey Lake Watershed Assoc.

Transfer Station ETF - 54,167.30 — for payment to Benevento Aggregates

Cemetery Maintenance ETF - $15,000 — for payment to ArborCare Tree Service

250" Anniversary ETF - $2,241,07 - for payments to Judy Martin-Royce, Robert Zielinski, and United
Church of Christ

Total Reimbursement Requests = § 31,923.07

Motion; “To approve the consent agenda as presented.”

Motion: T. Colby

Second: P. Sanderscn

Motion carried by vote of 5 to 0.

B. Boudreau asked for the balance in the 250™ Anniversary Fund. TA Johnson did not have that
information with him tonight but will get it to her.

TA Report:

Staffing: There is still one full-time position open in the police department and one fuli-time in the fire
department, although the Board will be discussing one candidate later tonight. One seasonal staff
position is still apen in the recreation department.

PW and facilities projects: Ditching is continuing in advance of the road reconstruction work to be done
this summer. TA Johnson is still working with Steve Robert on the sound and video system improvements.
There will be a new device to link the phone to the broadcast system so that people calling in to meetings
will be more easily heard, TA Johnson continues to work on alternates at the transfer station for the
recyclables. We continue to work with the engineers ta respond te DES concerns about the septage
lagoons and the transfer station. Some items have been completed, such as the new entrance sign, TA
Johnson continues to work on an assessment of the town hall meeting space. He is waiting for a plan from
the architect.

Elections: August 1 will be the primary for the open state representative seat. H. Kreider said Brian
Winslow, School Board Chair, asked if some Board members couid attend a school board meeting on July
12 at 2:30. H. Kreider would like to talk about the generator for the shelter, the timing of the changes of
fuel, and the increased costs and needing to find a place to held elections. The parish hall will no longer
be available for elections after the August 1 primary. P. Sanderson and J. Guzofski stated they could join
H. Kreider at that meeting. At the Board of Selectmen meeting prior 1o July 12, the Board will discuss
what they want to say.

One Sky CDBG Request, The Board had said they will consider the application One Sky wants to have
submitted. There will be a public hearing at the next meeting at 6:30 to hear details of the project and
discuss some of the facets of the program, and conditions of the grant requirements.

EMD Resignation: The Board has received the resignation of EMD Bab Young. Chief Drolet is the Deputy
and will assume the duties for now. H. Kreider said the Board will talk at the next meeting regarding how
to meet the needs of that position and to thank Bob personally.

Meetings are scheduled for June 28 for conducting Town Administratar interviews in a non-public session.
The next regutar Board meetings will be July 11 and July 25. :

6:30 Recreation Commission ~ Follow-up Discussion:
Wade Sauls, Dave Ruth, and Justin Miller from the Recreation Commission were present. John Newman
was present to discuss the plans for the recreation fields. Discussion occurred regarding the

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes Page3of 7
Draft June 27, 2023



139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186

DRAFT

responsibilities that would be given to the Recreation Commission by the Board of Selectmen. The
Recreation Commission has requested the following responsibilities:

1. Setting the strategic direction of the Recreation Department. This includes three-to-five-year
priority areas_and key performance indicators to measure progress. The strategic direction
includes facilities, where they are located, and how many we have and is a broad overview of the
department. There was discussion of how to mesh the recreation commission plans with the
town master plan and how to get funding approved and how to mesh recreation with other
departments in town such as the library to promote a variety of activities. Having regular
meetings between the Board of Selectmen and the Recreation Commission will help to promote
that. The Board agreed with this request, TA Johnson noted the strategic plan must be presented
to the Board before approval because the Board has the ultimate authority and oversees
everything. ltems may need to be adjusted based on the other needs of the community, Once the
plan has been adopted, it is up to the Recreation Director, in concert with the Friends and the
Commission, to execute the plan. That is where you get cohesive cooperation. This will bring
continuity and cooperation when you have a staff member instead of a volunteer who can be
responsible and held accountable within the plan,

2. Setting policy for recreation programs and facilities. This is opposed to recommending policy for
the Board of Selectmen to adopt. TA Johnson explained that all the policies that exist now have
been executed by the Board of Selectmen, and they must be because the Board is responsible for
any liability and enforcement of the policies and any legality related to the policies. He feels the
Commission can recommend policies to the Board and they can be evaluated by legal orinsurance
and then can get adopted by the Board. He also feels the Commission is confusing rules and
regulations for the department versus policies. Only the Board has the authority to set policy for
town property and they have aiready done that. Any rules and regulations of the games, events,
and functions would lie within the Commission. There is an existing policy that states use of the
recreation facilities needs to be approved through the Recreation Commission, but the request
needs to come through the town because we need to ensure the people using the facilities are
complying with all the regulations, such as insurance. The TA has already provided the Recreation
Commission with all the current policies. The Board agrees that policy recommendations need to
come to the Board, but rules and regulations are determined by the Recreation Commission.

3. Advise the Board of Selectrmen on appointments, but the power to appoint is with the Board of
Selectmen. Agreed by the Board.

4, Advise the Town Administrater.and Board of Selectmen on the hiring of new recreation directors
and assistant directors. Agreed by the Board.

5. Advise the recreation director in the formation of the department budget as well as the CIP.
Agreed by the Board.

6. Approval of expenditures gut of the revolving fund over $5,000. The current policy requires that
any expenditure requests over $5,000 must have the concurrence or recommendation of the
Recreation Commission, but only the Board of Selectmen authorize the expenses.

Recreation Field Plans:

lohn Newman presented the plan for the recreation fields. He spoke about parking issues and one-way
traffic patterns, the possibility of adding gated emergency access, the use of multi-purpose fields, and
possible future expansion options. There will need to be listening sessions to get public input to gain buy-
in and potential funding approval. The recreation fields can also be desighated as a landing spot for
medical helicopters as well. TA Johnson reminded the Commission to think about timing. September is
when they look at the CIP. Some of these things need to be added to that if they want to be funded in the
next few years. Funding was appropriated this year that can be used to crush material that is up there so
that it can be used on projects, depending on what the priorities are.

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 7
Draft June 27, 2023



187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
108
199
200
201
202
203
204
205

1206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233

DRAFT

At 7:18, the Board took a 3-minute recess.

H. Kreider said tomorrow night will be three candidate interviews starting at 6:30. Candidates will speak
for a few minutes, then open for questions, with one Board member asking ai a time.

Center School Status:

TA Johnson reported that legal counsel gave an opinion that we can utilize the approved funding to raze
the Center School building for dismantling the building instead. The current contractor is very
understanding of our situation, He has provided us with an invoice for the expenses already incurred for
$1,900. He is willing to offer a bid to dismantle the building as well. TA Johnson needs to know how the
Board wants to structure the RFP. He added that once the building is off the town property, we have no
control over the use of the building from a legal standpoint. But we will have accomplished what the
voters asked us to do and utilized the available funding. There was discussion about a new bid process,
the timeline for bids and completion of the project. TA Johnson suggested selling the building to be
dismantled by sealed bids, with a specified time to have the building removed off the property. Insurance
would need to be provided and possibly a bond. The consensus of the Board is to sell the building by
sealed hid process with the building needing to be removed from the town property within 30 days and
insurance must be provided for everycne involved.

Cable TV Franchise Agreement Negotiations Update:

TA Johnson said the cable negotiations have been a long, drawn-out process. The current contract expires
at the end of 2023, hut Breezeline has agreed to a 1-year extension. They will not extend the existing
terms, which are more favorable to the town than to Breezeline, for any more than one year. They want
to increase their build-out per mile with different density requirements, which is more favorable for them
than the town. Breezeline’s poor customer service has been a major issue, but they have improved their
game significantly. This agreement is strictly for cable tv, not internet service. We will have another year
of formal negotiations and hopefully finalizing a contract. This will probably be the last contract due to a
decrease in cable customers and increase in streaming services.

Amendment to Purchasing Policy:

TA Johnson heard a message at the Department Head meeting that the $500 purchasing limit before
needing TA approval was too low. Due to price increases on everything, $500 will not even buy two tires
for an ambulance, for example. He is proposing changes to the spending limit for a department head to
$1,000 and the Town Administrator limit to $5,000. These are the only changes proposed.

Motion: “To approve the amendment to the Purchasing Policy as presented.”

Motion: J. Guzofski

Second: P. Sanderson

B. Boudreau asked what other towns have for limits. TA Johnson said most have increased the limits to
$1,000. He added the issue is more about the execution process than anything else. He has complete
confidence in the department heads making good decisions for the taxpayer’'s money and there is still
oversight and accountability in the policy.

Motion carried by vote of 5 to 0.

Board Task Manager:
There are no changes.

New business:

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes Page50f 7
Draft June 27, 2023



234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
260
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281

DRAFT

TA Johnson reported that the pothole situation reported during Citizen’s Forum has already been
addressed. TA Johnson added that if a pothole is visible and can reasonably be avoided, there is no liability
to the town. If it is not visible or avoidable, we have 24 hours to put up flags.

He added that when any parking lines are painted, we would then be subject to the ADA rules and would
need to supply a handicap parking spot and ADA access to the facility. It will be a challenge to get handicap
access to some of the facilities. If parking issues are blocking emergency access, the police should be
called because that can he addressed.

There was a discussion about hiring a contractor to help catch up on the ditching work on which we are
behind or put more funds towards ditching instead of road reconstruction. TA Johnson said that we are
committed for this year for road reconstruction work. This needs to be a discussion that should take place
during the next budget season, with input from PW Foreman Brown. The Board has already approved an
extra month of rental on the excavator for ditching work. Contract ditching work would cost 52,500 a
day. There was also some cenfusion about where the message goes when someone uses the website to
report a pothole. TA Johnson will find that out.

Board Committee Reports:
H. Kreider reported the recent Safety Facility Committee listening sessions went very well. A citizen
requested to attend the next committee meeting and then asked to be appointed as an alternate.

P. Sanderson said the Zoning Board is still looking for two alternates to serve. They have moved their
meeting dates to the 3™ Thursday of the month. This will accommodate town staff to bring planning board
results to the ZBA to assist in decision-making since there will be more time between the Planning Board
meeting and the Zoning Board meeting.

B. Boudreau said the Friends of Recreation have agreed to sponsor the Imagination Library Program by
Dolly Parton. Children under the age of five will receive a book every month.

Citizen’s Forum;
None,

At 8:28,

Motion: “To go into a non-public session under RSA 91A;3 {a), (b), and {c).”
Motion: T. Colby

Second: P.Sanderson

Motion carried by a roll call vote of 510 0.

Public session Resumed at 8:50pm

Motion “to seal the minutes as the content of the session may affect the reputations of an individual or
individuals not a member of the Board.

Motion: T. Colby

Second: ). Guzofski

Motion carried by roll call vote of 5/0.

T. Colby questioned the continued use of the upper section of the Rt 4 athletic fields for disposing of large
tree trunks removed from town roadsides and waste material from ditch work. TA Johnson reported that
the use of the recreation field property should be used exclusively for recreational activity so grants can

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes Paga 6of 7
Draft June 27, 2023



282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295

DRAFT

be requested for work/improvements on the entire site. T. Colby expressed concern about finding an
alternative site owned by the town. The matter will be discussed further at the next meeting when DPW

Foreman Brown is in attendance.

Motion: “To recess this meeting until 6:30pm on June 28" at Town Hall for the purpose of interviewing

TA candidates.”
Motion: J. Guzofski
Second: P. Sanderson

iVieeting recessed at 8:57

Minutes respectfully submitted by
Cheryl Eastman

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
Draft June 27, 2023

Pape 7 of 7



Northwood NH Consent Agenda for July 11, 2023

Accounts Payable Manifest dated July 5, 2023
Batch #122 for $82, 726.22

Payroll Manifest dated July 12, 2023
Batch #071223 for $56,581.96

Approved by a vote of Yes, No on July 11, 2023

Hal Kreider
Tim Colby

Beth Boudreau
James Guzofski

Pamela Sanderson



Town of Northwood
Town Administrator’s Report
July 11, 2023

Staffing Update: PD one FT patrolman positions in the pohce still accepting applications for one
seasonal staff position in the Rec Department

2023 Public Works and Facility Projects: Ditch work continues on several roads in anticipation of
the reconstruction and paving projects in late summer and fall. We continue working with Steve Robert
to improve the AV equipment in the town hall. DPW continues to repair several potholes on many
roads throughout town created by the ongoing heavy rain events.

Transfer Station and Septage Lagoon Inspection: We continue to work with CMA Engineering on
responses to a couple of questions regarding closing out the landfilled glass and the overall landfill
closure plan. Work also continues to comply with their requests concerning the septage lagoon system
with CMA. Numerous pictures have been sent to DES confirming our compliance with the notice of
deficiencies letter items. We have a new entrance sign at the transfer station that complies with the
current DES rules provided by NH the Beautiful Program at no charge.

Former Center School: A request for bids for the sale of the building to be removed from town
property has been issued with bids due on August 1. Conditions include having to remove the building
from town property within 30 days of award. A copy of the RFP is posted on the town’s website.

Elections: The August 1* special primary election for state representative will be in the parish hall
from 7:00am to 7:00pm. Some Board members will be meeting with the school board on 7/12 at
2:30pm to discuss the future use of the school for elections and the new generator for the school.

Strafford Metropolitan Planning Organization Representatives Appointments: Your packet
includes a copy of the letter regarding the need to appoint a representative and alternate to the
Technical Advisory committee (TAC) from Northwood.

Tax Deeded Properties: Discussions are ongoing with the former owners of two tax deeded properties
that I feel will result in the repurchase of both in the near future.

Upcoming Meetings Schedule: Board Mecting Schedule: special Board session on 7/12, regular
meetings; 7/11 and 7/25,



A Repon?

Regional Planning Commission

July 8, 2023

Northwood Board of Selectmen
12 Mountain View Drive
Strafford NH 03884

Dear Northwood Board of Selectmen,

The Strafford Metropolitan Planning Organization (SMPO?) is responsible for transportation
planning for the region. The MPO is comprised of the Policy Committee and the Technical
Advisory Committee {TAC). Each of the elghteen communities is a member of the MPO
through their association with Strafford Regional Planning Commission (SRPC).

The TAC is typically comprised of municipal staff representatives, or other individuals
involved in day-to-day transportation decisions. They provide leadership and make
recommendations to the SMPO Policy Committee. The Policy Committee is comprised of all
SRPC Commissioners and other transportation and transit providers and agencies in the
State and region.

Members will be appointed for two years, in this case, Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025. The
TAC meets at 9 am. on the first Friday of every month to give and receive input on
regional transportation issues and is a critical component in the decision-making process
for the MPO. Our records indicate that your current appointees’ terms expired on
6/30/2023 and you have one vacancy:

CURRENT APPOINTEES:
Regular Member Alternate
Vacant: term expiration 6/30/2023 Walter Johnson: term expiration 6/30/2023

Please use the attached appointment form and return once completed to Megan Taylor-
Fetter (mtaylorfetter@strafford.org), Strafford Regional Planning Commission, 150
Wakefield Street, Suite 12, Rochester, NH 03867. If you have any questions, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Jennifer Czysz AICP
Executive Director

cc: Walter Johnson




Page 2 of 2

Town of Northwood

NEW APPOINTEE AND ALTERNATE

FY 2024 -~ FY 2025 APPOINTEE FY 2024~ FY 2025 ALTERNATE 1
Name: Name:

Address: Address:

Phone Number: Phone Number:

Email: Email:

The signatures of the Appointing Official(s) listed below confirm that the above-named
individual(s} shall be appointed as the Town of Northwood's representative(s) of the MPO
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2025,

Appointing Official/Title Date
Appolinting Official/Title Date
Appointing Official/Title ' Date

NorthwoodTAC Appointment



Script TOWN OF NORTHWOOD
Public Hearings
Community Development Block Grant Project

July 11, 2023 6:30pm
(Please note in the minutes that an informational document was available)

Selectmen Open Public Hearing on the Proposed One Sky Community Services Rehabilitation
Project CDBG Application

Community Development Biock Grant (CDBG) funds are available to municipalities through the NH
Community Development Finance Authority. Up to $500,000 annually is available for Economic
Development Projects, up $500,000 for Housing Projects, up to $500,000 for Public Facility Projects, up
to $350,000 in Emergency Funds, up to $25,000 per Planning Study grant. All projects must directly
benefit a majority of low- and moderate-income persons.

This is a proposed application to the Community Development Finance Authority for up to $500,000 in
CDBG Housing Grant Funds. Of the grant funds, up to $30,000 wili be retained by the town of
Northwood for administrative costs associated with the project, $470,000 of the funds will be sub-granted
to One Sky Community Services for the rehabilitation of One Sky housing at 36 Bean Road in
Northwood, NH. One Sky will use the funds for improvements including a fire suppression system, the
addition of two bedrooms, the addition of a full bathroom, a new metal roof, septic system
upgrade/additional to meet the need of the additional bedrooms, safety measures that include
reinforcement of exterior stairs, deck, along with ramps and other accessibility upgrades, mechanical
upgrades, such a new heating, paving and energy improvements.

This project conforms with Northwood’s proposed Housing and Community Development Plan’s goals of:
Goal: Encourage a varied stock of safe, sanitary, decent and affordable housing for persons of all age
and income groups. And, Goal: Encourage services to meet needs, including social services, elder and
child care needs.

ASK FOR PUBLIC COMMENT (the minutes must reflect that the public was asked for comments — even
if there is no public there)

Selectmen Close Public

Selectmen | Open ‘the Publlg Hearlng on the Residential Antidlsplacement and Relocation
Assrstance Plan for the One Sky’ ‘Community Sérvices Rehabilitation Project

This plan outlines measures, under the Uniform Relocation Act, required for CDBG projects that involve
any displacement or relocation of persons (or businesses), if the Town were to undertake a CDBG
project which involved displacement or relocation they would follow this plan. The plan outlines the
measures they would take to find comparable, suitable housing for persons (or businesses) displaced or
relocated. No displacement or relocation is anticipated for this project.

ent Plan

Se lectmen Qﬁe n Public Hearing on the Housing and Commuinity Developr

A Housing and Community Development Plan is required to be eligible to apply for CDBG funds. The
proposed Northwood’s Housing and Community Development Plan (HCDP) identifies needs, which
currently exist or are anticipated during the next three years. The Plan provides a basis for guiding the



Town’'s housing and community development objectives and actions. [n addition, the Plan includes a
CDBG Citizen Participation plan that details the CDBG requirements for public hearings.

Goal: Encourage a varied stock of safe, sanitary, decent and affordable housing for persons of all age
and income groups. (Short-term and Long-term goal}.

Goal: Encourage economic development activities to increase quality industrial and commercial
development. Encourage the expansion and retention of employment opportunities for residents. (Short-
term and Long-term goal).

Goal: Encourage municipal and private water and wastewater systems that are safe, sanitary and that
meet DES regulations. (Short-term and Long-term goal).

Goal: Encourage services to meet needs, including social services, elder and child care needs.

Goal: Preserve and promote the Town’s historically and culturally significant structures. (Short-term and
Long-term goal).

Goal: Promote activities that protect the health and safety of residents and visitors. (Short-term and
Long-term goal).

Selectmen Close the Public Heating

VOTING

Selectmen vote to approve the submittal of the CDBG apphcatlon and vote to authorize the Chairman,
Board of Selectmen to sign and submit the CDBG. appllcatlon and upon approval of the CDBG
appllcaflon authorize the Chairman;’ Board of Selectmen to execlite any documents which may be
necessary to effectuate the CDBG éontract, and any amendments thersto.

Selectmen vote to adopt the Antidisplacement and Relacation Assistance Plan

Selectmen vote to adopt the Housing and Community Development Plan



Handout TOWN OF NORTHWOOD

Public Hearings
Community Development Block Grant Project

July 11, 2023, 6:30pm
Public Hearing on the Proposed One Sky Community Services Rehabilitation Project CDBG Application

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds are available to municipalities through the NH Community
Development Finance Authority. Up to $500,000 annually is available for Economic Development Projects, up
$500,000 for Housing Projects, up to $500,000 for Public Facility Projects, up to $350,000 in Emergency Funds, up
to $25,000 per Planning Study grant. All projects must directly benefit a majority of low- and moderate-income
persons.

This is a proposed application to the Community Development Finance Authority for up to $500,000 in CDBG
Housing Grant Funds. Of the grant funds, up to $30,000 will be retained by the town of Northwood for
administrative costs associated with the project, $470,000 of the funds will be sub-granted to One Sky Community
Services for the rehabilitation of One Sky housing at 36 Bean Road in Northwood, NH. One Sky will use the funds
for improvements including a fire suppression system, the addition of two bedrooms, the addition of a full bathroom,
a new metal roof, septic system upgrade/additional to meet the need of the additional bedrooms, safety measures
that include reinforcement of exterior stairs, deck, along with ramps and other accessibility upgrades, mechanical
upgrades, such a new heating, paving and energy improvements.

This project conforms with Northwood’s proposed Housing and Community Development Plan’s goals of: Goal:
Encourage a varied stock of safe, sanitary, decent and affordable housing for persons of all age and income
groups. And, Goal: Encourage services to meet needs, including social services, elder and child care needs.

Public Hearing on the Residential Antidisplacement and Relocation Assistance Plan for the One Sky
Community Services Rehabilitation Project

This plan outlines measures, under the Uniform Relocation Act, required for CDBG projects that involve any
displacement or relocation of persons (or businesses), if the Town were to undertake a CDBG project which
involved disptacement or relocation they would follow this plan. The plan outlines the measures they would take to
find comparable, suitable housing for persons {(or businesses) displaced or relocated. No displacement or
relocation is anticipated for this project.

Public Hearing on the Housing and Community Development Plan

A Housing and Gommunity Development Pian is required to be eligible to apply for CDBG funds. The proposed
Northwood's Hausing and Community Development Plan (HCDP) identifies needs, which currently exist or are
anticipated during the next three years. The Plan provides a basis for guiding the Town's housing and community
development objectives and actions. in addition, the Plan includes a CDBG Citizen Participation plan that details
the CDBG requirements for public hearings.

Goal: Encourage a varied stock of safe, sanitary, decent and affordable housing for persons of all age and income
groups. (Short-term and Long-term goal).

Goal: Encourage economic development activities to increase quality industrial and commercial development.
Encourage the expansion and retention of employment opportunities for residents. (Short-term and Long-term
goal).

Goal: Encourage municipal and private water and wastewater systems that are safe, sanitary and that meet DES
regulations. (Short-term and Long-term goal).

Goal: Encolrage services to meet needs, including social services, elder and child care needs.

Goal: Preserve and promote the Town’s historically and culturally significant structures. (Short-term and Long-term
goal).

Goal: Promote activities that protect the health and safety of residents and visitors. (Short-term and Long-term
goal).



NORTHWOOD
Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan
For the Proposed One Sky Community Services Rehabilitation Project

Every effort will be made to minimize temporary or permanent displacement of persons due to a
CDBG project undertaken by the municipality.

However, in the event of displacement as a resutt of a federally funded CDBG award, the Town
will comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of
1970, as amended, to any household, regardless of income which is inveluntarily and permanently
displaced.

If the property is acquired, but will not be used for low/moderate income housing under 104(d) of
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, the displacement and
relocation ptan shall provide that before obligating and spending funds that will directly result in
such demolition or conversion the municipality will make public and submit to CDFA the following
information:

a. Comparable replacement housing in the community within three (3) years ofthe
commencement date of the demolition or rehabilitation;

b. A description of the proposed activity;

c. The general location on a map and appropriate number of dwelling units by number of
bedrooms that will be demolished or converted to a use other than as low and moderate income
dwelling units as a direct result of the assisted activity;

d. A time schedule for the commencement and completion date of the demolition or conversion;

e. The general location on a map and appropriate number of dwelling units by number of
bedrooms that will be provided as replacement dwelling units;

f. The source of funding and a time schedule for the provision of replacement dwelling units;

g. The basis for concluding that each replacement dwelling unit wili remain a low and moderate
income dweiling unit for at least ten (10} years from the date of initial occupancy;

h. Relocation benefits for all low or moderate income persons shall be provided, including
reimbursement for moving expenses, security deposits, credit checks, temporary housing, and
other related expenses and either:

1. Sufficient compensation to ensure that, at least for five (5) years after being relocated, any
displaced low/moderate income household shall not bear a ratio of shelter costs to income that
exceeds thirty (30) percent, or:

2. If elected by a family, a lump-sum payment equal to the capitalized value of the
compensation available under subparagraph 1. above to permit the household to secure
participation in a housing cooperative or mutual housing association, or a Section 8 certificate of
voucher for rental assistance provided through New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.

i. Persons displaced shall be relocated into comparable replacement housing that is decent, safe,
and sanitary, adequate in size to accommodate the occupants, functionally equivalent, and in an
area not subject to unreasonably adverse environmental conditions;

i. Provide that persons displaced have the right to elect, as an alternative to the benefits in



subparagraph 2. above, to received benefils under the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 if such persons determine that it is in their best interest to
do so; and

k. The right of appeal to the executive director of CDFA where a claim for assistance under
subparagraph 2. above, is denied by the grantee. The executive director’s decision shall be final
unless a court determines the decision was arbitrary and capricious.

[ Paragraphs a. through k. above shall not apply where the HUD Field Office objectively findsthat
there is an adequate supply of decent, affordable low/moderate income housing in the area.

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE

The Town anticipates no displacement or relocation activities will be necessitated by this project. Al
commercial tenants will remain, no displacement is needed. The residential construction is only in vacant
areas of the building. Should some unforeseen need for relocation arise, the Town certifies that it will
comply with the Uniform Relocation Act and Section 104 (d) of the Housing and Community
Davelopment Act of 1974, as amended.

Printed Municipal Official Name: Hal Kreider.

Title: Chalrman Board of Selectmen

Signature; - T e
Date of Adoptlon July 11, 2023




NORTHWOQOD, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Housing and Community Develocpment Plan
July 2023

The Northwood's Housing and Community Development Plan (HCDP) identifies needs, which currently
exist or are anticipated during the next three years. The Plan provides a basis for guiding the Town's
housing and community development objectives and actions. The Housing and Community Development
Plan is consistent with the current master plan of the Town.

This decument also outiines the Town’s efforts o include citizen participation in implementing activities
funded through the Community Development Block Grant. That information is found in the section below
titled “Citizen Participation Plan.”

Housing and Community Devélopment Goals and Objectives

The Plan’s goals and objectives are identified below and are consistent with the national Housing and
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and the state’s objectives listed in Chapter Cdfa 300
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Rules (Cdfa 305.01 & 310.01). These goals and
objectives are both short and long term. Priority will be given to the needs of low and moderate-income
persons, minorities and disadvantaged people.

The Town states that as a matter of policy, involuntary displacement of households from their
neighborhoods as part of a CDBG project shall be minimized.

Goals and objectives of this plan, both long and short-term, are consistent with following broad national
objectives:

National Objective 1: direct benefit to low and moderate income persons or households;

National Objective 2: the prevention or elimination of slums and blight; and

National Objective 3: Elimination of conditions which seriously and immediately threaten the public
health and welfare.

Goals and Objectives of this plan also addresses as many of the following state’s objectives as
appropriate for COBG grant awards, and priority will be given to projects that have a public benefit, in
both the short and long-term as follows:

State Objective 1. Implementing the Housing and Community Development Plan and conforming to the
Town's master plan and ordinances,;

State Objective 2: Preserving and promoting existing neighborhoods and community centers;

State Objective 3: Restoring and preserving properties which have historic, cultural, architectural or
aesthetic value;

State Objective 4: Solving community problems with long term benefits and innovative solutions;

State Objective 5: Successfully raising funds or securing matching funds and resources from public and
private sources; and

State Objective 6: Funding needed projects for which other private or public funding shall not be
available.

The Town’s three-year short and long-term goals and objectives are as follows:



GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
The Town commits to the following goals to meet the Housing and Community Development needs of
the Town:
Goeal: Encourage a varied stock of safe, sanitary, decent and affordable housing for persons of all age
and income groups. (Short-term and Long-term goal).
Goal: Encourage economic development activities to increase quality industrial and commercial
development. Encourage the expansion and retention of employment opportunities for residents. (Short-
term and Long-term goal).
Goal: Encourage municipal and private water and wastewater systems that are safe, sanitary and that
meet DES ragulations. (Short-term and Long-term goal).
Goal: Encourage services to meet needs, including social services, elder and child care needs.
Goal: Preserve and promote the Town's historically and culturally significant structures. (Short-term and
Long-term goal).
Goal: Promote activities that protect the health and safety of residents and visitors. (Short-term and
Long-term goal).
Federal CDBG grant funds awarded shall be consistent with the national objectives and shall, at a
minimum, provide improved housing in accordance with Section 8 standards, public facilities, or
employment opportunities primarily to low and moderate income persons or households. Grants shall
not benefit moderate income persons to the exclusion of low income persons

Citizen Participation Plan

The Town will seek to engage its citizens in implementing housing and community activities funded by
the Community Development Block Grant. Its citizen patticipation efforts will be consistent with the State
of New Hampshire's citizen participation plan. Specifically, the Town will adhere to the following steps to
engage its citizens:

1} Publishing a statement of proposed activities for any application proposed to be submitted by the
Town so that affected citizens have an opportunity to submit-comments on the proposed
activities.

2) Provide adequate notices, specifically to persons of low- and moderate-income as well as the the
general public, for all public hearings to discuss proposed or approved CDBG applications. Such
notices will include the statement of proposed activities or how to obtain such statement. At least
ten days prior to any hearing, the notices will be published in a daily newspaper of general
circulation in the municipality; AND posted as a printed legal notice in at least three other public
places.

3) Hold two or more public hearings on the proposed application at times and {ocations convenient
to potential beneficiaries, accessible to persons with physical disabilities, and that meet the needs
of non-English speaking residents, if appropriate, to obtain citizens’ views before adoption of
resolution or similar action by the local governing body authorizing the submission of the
application. At least one public hearing will be held prior to submitting any CDBG application and
another during the course of all approved projects.

4) Provide at public hearings information concerning the amount of funds available for proposed
community development activities and the range of activities within the project.

5) Provide at public hearings information concerning the amount of funds that will benefit persons of
low- and moderate-income.

6) Provide at public hearings information about potential program income and the Program Income
Reuse plan, if program income is anticipated.



7) Furnish citizens with the plans made to minimize the displacement of persons and to assist
persons actually displaced as a result of grant activities, if displacement is anticipated.

8) Provide technical assistance to groups representing persons of low- and moderate-income
requesting such assistance in developing proposals.

9) Provide citizens with reasonable notice of substantial changes proposed in the use of grant funds
and providing opportunity for public comment;

10) Any modifications or amendments to the project will be made in accordance with the same
procedures required in points (1) through (3) above for the preparation and submission of a
statement of proposed activities.

Any complaints or grievances received by Town will be addressed within 15 working days of its receipt.

Printed Municipal Official Name: Hal Kreider
Title: Chairman, Board of Selectmen

£ g

Date of Adoption: July 11, 2023



MUNICIPAL CERTIFICATION
For the Proposed One Sky Community Services Rehabilitation Project

To the best of my knowledge, the data in this application is true and correct, and this application
submittal has been authorized by the Town of Northwood, New Hampshire. The Town of Northwood will
comply with all federal and state laws, rules, regulations and requirements, including those in the CDBG
Application and Program Guide and the Implementation Guide. Furthermore, | certify that:

» The municipality affirmatively furthers fair and affordable housing;

* Where applicable, the proposed project is consistent with the municipal master plan, the Housing and
Community Development Plan (HCDP), the Residential Antidisplacement & Relocation Assistance
(RARA) Plan and that all planning and zoning requirements have been (will be) met;

*+ Where applicable, the municipality shall provide adequate funds to operate and maintain the public
facility or improvement after the completion of the project;

+ This application is being submitted with the full knowledge and approval of the Organization's Board of
Selectmen and that the Organization will comply with New Hampshire conflict of interest laws as defined
by RSA 7:19-a and RSA 292:6-a;

» This application is being submitted with the full knowledge and approval of CDFA’s Privacy Policy, by
which | acknowledge all information and documents created, accepted or obtained by, or on behalf of,
CDFA are potentially subject to disclosure in compliance with RSA 91-A, New Hampshire's Right-to-
Know law. (party authorized in public hearing)

| hereunto set my hand and official seal. Notary Public/Justice of the Peace (Seal) My Commission
expires

Hal Kreider Chairman, Board of Selectmen
Name of Designated CEO: Title:

X July 11, 2023

Signature Date

NOTARY SECTION

State of New Hampshire

County of Rockingham

On this 11th day of May, 2023 before me i ‘71 , the undersigned officer, personally
appeared Hal Kreidet, who acknowledged him/herself to be the Chalrman Board of Selectmen and that

he/she, as such, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing certification for the purposes thersin
contained :

IN'WITNESS WHEREOF | herdiints Se iy i seal.




Applicant’Recipient U.S. Department of Housing OMB Approval No. 2510-0011
. and Urban Development
Disclosure/Update Report

Instructions. (See Public Reporting Statement and Privacy Act Statement and detailed instructions on page 2.)

Applicant/Recipient information Indicate whether this Is an Initial Report X or an Update Report
1. Applicant/Recipient Name, Address, and Phone {include area code): 2. Social Security Number
Town of Northwood or Employer ID Number:

818 First NH Turnpike
Northwood, NH 03261
Phone (603) 942-5586

3. HUD Program Name 4. Amount of HUD
Community Development Block Grant Assistance
y pmen Requested/Received
Up to $500,000
5. State the name and location (strest address, City and State) of the project or activity:
36 Bean Road, Northwood, NH
Part! Threshold Determinations
1. Are you applying for assistance for a specific project or 2. Have you received or do you expect to receive assistance
activity? These terms do ot include formula grarits, within the jurisdiction of the Department (HUD) , involving
such as public housing operating subsidy or CDBG the project or activity in this application, in excess of
block grants. (For further information see 24 CFR Sec. $200,000 during this fiscal year (Oct. 1 - Sep. 30}? For
4.3), further information, see 24 CFR Sec. 4.9
___Yes No _X_Yes [] No.

If you answered "No” to either question 1 or 2, Step! You do not need to complete the remainder of this form.
However, you must sign the certification at the end of the report.

Part 1l Other Government Assistance Provided or Requested / Expected Sources and Use of Funds. Such assistance
includes, but is not limited to, any grant, loan, subsidy, guarantee, insurance, payment, credit, or tax benefit.

Department/State/Local Agency Name and Type of Amount Expected Uses of the
Address Assistance Requested/Provided Funds

{Note: Use Additional pages if necessary.)

Part lll Interested Parties. You must disclose:

1. All developers, contractors, or consultants involved in the application for the assistance or in the planning, development, or
implementation of the project or acfivity and

2. any other person who has a financial interest in the project or activity for which the assistance is sought that exceeds $50,000
ar 10 percent of the assistance (whichaver is lower).

Alphabetical list of all persons with a reportable Social Security | Type of Participation Financial Interest in
financial interest in the project or activity (For No. or in Project/Activity Praject/Activity ($ and %)
individuals, give the last name first) Employee ID
No.
Certification

Warning: If you knowingly make a false statement an this form, you may be subject to civil or criminal penalties under Section
1001 of Title 18 of the United States Code. |n addition, any person who knowingly and materially violates any required
disclosures of information, including intentional non-disclosure, is subject to civil money penalty not to exceed $10,000 for each
violation.

I certify that this information is true and complete.,

Signature: Date: (mm/ddfyyyy)

July 11, 2023

X o Hal Krelder, Chairman Board of Selectmen




Environmental Review for Activity/Project that is Exempt
Pursuant to 24 CFR Part 58.34(a)
FORM 3-A

Project Name: Proposed One Sky Community Services Rehabilitation Project

Responsible Entity (Municipality): Town of Northwood

Sub-Recipient (if different than Responsible Entity): One Sky Community Services

Preparer; Donna Lane

Certifying Officer Name and Title: Hal Kreider, Chairman, Board of Selectmen

Project Address: 36 Bean Road, Northwood, NH

Total CDBG Grant Amount; _up to $500,000

Exempt CDBG Activity Estimated Amount: _Up to $30,000

Description of the Proposed Project: One Sky Community Services for the rehabilitation of One Sky
housing at 36 Bean Road in Northwood, NH. One Sky will use the funds for improvements including a
fire suppression system. the addition of two bedrooms, the addition of a full bathroom, a new metal roof,
septic system upgrade/additional to meet the need of the additional bedrooms, safety measures that
include reinforcement of exterior stairs, deck, along with ramps and other accessibility

upgrades, mechanical upgrades, such a new heating, paving and energy improvements.

Level of Environmental Review Determination

Activity/Project is Exempt per 24 CFR 58.34(a)

As Chief Certifying Official of the Applicant, | hereby certify that the activities from the above mentioned
project have heen reviewed and determined to be Exempt activity(ies) per 24 CFR 58.34 as follows (check
those that apply):

4 58.34(a) (1). Environmental & other studies, resource identification & the
development of plans & strategies;

58.34{(a) (2) Information and financial services;

58.34(a) (3) Administrative and management activities;

58.34(a) (4) Public services that will not have a physical impact or result in any

physical changes, including but not limited to services concerned with empleyment,

crime prevention, child care, health, drug abuse, education, counseling, energy

conservation and welfare or recreational needs;

58.34(a) (5) Inspections and testing of properties for hazards or defects;

58.34(a) (6) Purchase of insurance;

58.34(a} (7) Purchase of {ools;

58.34(a) (8) Engineering or design costs;

58.34(a) (9) Technical assistance and training;

58.34(a) (10} Assistance for tempaorary or permanent improvements that do not alter

environmental conditions and are limited to protection, repair, or restoration activities

necessary only to control or arrest the effects from disasters or imminent threats to

public safety including those resulting from physical deterioration;

58.34(a) (11) Payment of principal and interest on loans made or obligations

guaranteed by HUD;

Other:

1 N Y (.




CDBG Environmental Review Compliance Checklist for 24 CFR §58.6

1. §58.6(a) and {b) Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1 973 as amended; National Flood
Insurance Reform Act of 1994

HUD State-administered assistance through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
is considered a "formula grant made to States.” By law, the restriction on financial assistance for
acquisition and construction purposes in special flood hazard areas is not applicable to "formuia grants
made to States.” 24 CFR 58.6(a)(3). Compliance with this section is not applicable for CDBG-financed
projects.

2. §58.6(c) Coastal Barrier Inprovement Act, as amended by the Coastal Barriers
Improvement Act of 1990 (16 U.S.C. 3501) Not Applicable Please Move on to the next section
CDFA 11/13/14.

Per FEMA'’s and the US Fish & Wildlife Service’s web sites; New Hampshire does nof have designated
Coastal Barrier Resource System areas/communities. (Per Federal Consistency Coordinator, New
Hampshire Costal Program DES 11/13/2014).

3. §58.6(d) Runway Clear Zones and Clear Zones [24 CFR §51.303(a) (3)]

a. ts your project located near Concord, Manchester or Portsmouth Airports?

Yes [] No [
If No, compliance with this section is complete.
If Yes, continue below.

b. Does the project involve the sale or purchase of existing property?

Yes [ No []
If No, compliance with this section is complete.
If Yes, continue below.

c. Is the project focated within 2,500 feet of the end of a civil airport runway (Civil
Airport’s Runway Clear Zone) or within 15,000 feet of the end of a military runway
(Military Airfield’s Clear Zone)?

Yes [ | No[]

if No, compliance with this section is complete.

If Yes, Notice must be provided to buyer. The notice must advise the buyer that the
property is in a Runway Clear Zone or Clear Zone, what the implications of such a
location are, and that there is a possibility that the property may, at a later date, be
acquired by the airport operator. The buyer must sign a statement acknowledging receipt
of this information, and a copy of the signed notice must be maintained in this ERR.

To determine if your project falls in the Clear zone please use the following
link. Radius Tool: http://www.freemaptools.com/radius-around-point.htm input your
address on top, go below the map and fill in the feet space, click on map and the radius
will be shown. If you have questions please call CDFA.

Cite and attach source document (Map indicating project site in proximity to end of runway):
For more information see:

Airport Information: hitps://www.hudexchange.info/environmental-review/airport-hazards/
http://www.airnav.com/airports/




HUD Airport Hazards Guidance: hitps://www.onecpd.info/environmental-review/airport-hazards/
Notice to Prospective Buyers: hitps://www.onecpd.infolresource/2758/notice-prospective-buyers-
properties-in-runway-clear-zones/

With reference to the above Program activity(ies)/Project, |, the undersigned officer of the grantee,
accept responsibility under the National Environmental Policy Act for environmental reviews, decisions
and actions. By my signature below, | certify that | am authorized to, and do perscnally accept the
jurisdiction of the Federal Court for enforcement of the aforesaid responsibilities. In addition, we request
that the environmental conditions attendant to the above referenced grant activities be released so that,
upon Governor and Council approval (where applicable), funds may be drawn down for Exempt (§58.34).
| understand that any activities not listed above are subject to all rules applicable to 24CFR58 and that
funds may be not be obligated without a notice of removal of environmental conditions from CDFA

Responsible Entity Agency Official Signature:

Name/Title/Organization: Town of Northwood
Authorized Certifying Officer Signature X_~ =
Date:7-11-23 ~
Name/Title: Hal Kreider, Chairman. -Board of Selectmen
Preparer Name: Donna Lane

Date: 7-6-23

Preparer Signatuse:

Any costs incurred prior to contract approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if
applicable) of the State of New Hampshire will be at the risk of the applicant. You may not incur
any cost except for those authorized by CDFA prior to release of funds notification, All applicable
State and Federal regulations including but not limited to procurement and debarment apply to
the activities stated above.



P6T°SST 001961 2 OLFTT

00%°€ N 00T 00081 001 06 X 00$Tx 22 H00°8 ANVTINEVA

0¥ N 00T Q08T 001 06 X 00sTX SBO00L ATHEQ TONANM

d1d #LT N 0§  00I‘tL 06 06 X 0bsfex MWYLYS WAHLO TONIAN
INIVIW/OVOE LAD 00TIST N 0 00T ST 06 001 001 001 0z1 D 0D0°0FT SBOOOT SHd 41
§3J0N IMEAXE], W IS WAIO[EBAPY  Pusd AqdeiSodo], demqa pmOM  AMS by ON ey aseg sy ad{y, pue]

061 :aBwmoly WnWNUI (07 PSEDY WRWIUY TV 1U0Z
e - .

S

SKBAMDALIT

F6E'STL § STBI0L 12218 ]

P6T'ssT § 0089 § 00L°€95 § TT
SOY'CES § M0 L jeoaRg
SOLBOT § 0059 % DOE0TE $ 1707
6507067 § 1IM0L e0ag
£59°501 $ 866 S 0598 §
saanyeaq
00F°9
MITT 00S°E 00l  00005°C 00T 1 WOLVEANID
006'C 00T  00006C 001 I ANIS -1 ZOV 14T

adAy axnyeag

PP X @3y sy

s

SNON INEA PRIERY  pao) Ipv sa15

(819 80/90/€0

ATONITIOOOV 0oy B0/0E/70

H2IYS QELODIEOD “VEIV HLD ON IvVS YOOT TIIHMSNY WOy 01/60/50

OHM NOSI¥Ed =£z0¢ NI IWHIINOD *OHS HL)/ASH LSH ‘NI qHaIav Wooy ST/90/L0

1 1Z0T P65 DNTISY =020 dTNVIH=110<1d9 "HILIS TLLOTHI0D Tard RIMFT/SO
TOIJ GIATY HON :2AD 6107 'SSTIEDOUL Y04 TYITTIAD THD SAOTIV Wd0d 61/90/90

$ SV DNIXTT TANMO TINAO J0 ISTNOTI LYV CTMATATT 87T “ISH MIN YALIIT IdIV  TIVIA TTER90
FOP IAMOL TTID O MOT 04 SHIOV 58 CHAOWHYT SHMOL-TI-7€C’NVL . TTIH0/90
P W T " 0 R

i
5 ISELON =

AL A NIINVE ‘NVES 661N ESL 6395 910T/1/Z0 108€0 HN HINOWSINO
VHANVS ‘WIVHIDN ISIfT 900 <TBLS  910T/GE/E0 EHLINS
HOVODLIOW LLYN TVIEdEd 0£5°L91 SEIN  STET LS  910T/O1/60 AVOY¥ QTILINVS SSL
V IIHJOLSTIHD WTATN OFPT0 L99T €985 LIDE/81/01
‘INANIOTIALT TVEgTITD 000°5Z 10 FLET 9079 DZ0TILAL
JOJURED) 2OELJ AT aseg oog e K ONI nWHU;MH.m”w ALINOAWINOD AMS ANO

T30 1:PIED 200000 -qrS

JOOMHIFON

TTOT/90/0T



HEILVA LOH/TIO 9BeH

JAIV I/ AOOMTIVH 1001

TIVAAAEG 1
INIATS TANIA 3%H

LEIVYHdSV/dIH ATV 007
NOLINIANOD HAVIA AHOLS 05T PP

VO OTHIANVYE S5

LI JUN0IVY
1080 HN ‘HINOWSLIOd

¢ 41108

D0LE95 § waufe A Juprng
% 1 smogemaida feog,
Arerodway,
Eotisgeiees | =
[RTOLITEL]
eorsAgg
% 11 acob D3 10 QOmIPUO)
£007 Mg mOL
6IF'EE9 § MBN 1S07) 1B
: - T = 5 —
T ] T
= w% k= MW
= e = dge 5
=
T il
- ) Fe) B 1)
00L% USE VD = = ARG
1z NI2 BO90d NEdO 440 - TP I oS o B L
0801 NIIA¥IS T/ dSH
15¢ HOVIVD VD Zt 2t
Z6LZ NITIIIsL 449
L HONVIING/MOII  ¥3a
61% INNSd e
Y mopdriasag al
LUPEL S 1807 1004 b
L7960 ey 8pig
00°0FT VS orey oseq 6£b8°0 v omg
s TNOH MAN ATAIDIASNN  £0/0T/40
e w0 ADVIVD 40 YOOTI GNZ HSINIA CHAIAIDEISNG - 90/S0/01
OTHOAY TV HaEnd A ANYLS AT 40 NOLLVTTY.ISNI TVORILOTTE  1T/L1/Z0
SIOIBINI0) oN DIV HNTT ONLYOTD HAOHY dJNHL HNINNIH TVOINVHOIN  12/L1/20
:sooydomg ST BUXY Sa)ON adiy oaforg BN
SSOIMXLY ST smeg € ISuooIpeyg

TT0Z/90/01 “ﬂau.ﬂﬁm TOOMABILION

1°SADIAYIS XLINNIWINOD X3S ANO

1J0 1 :p1e) 00

000 :qng TEO00D D071 PEZ000 ey



In its statutory role as Franchising Authority, pursuant to the laws of the State of New
Hampshire, the Town of Northwood, New Hampshire {the “Franchising Authority” or
“Town”) hereby extends the Cable Television Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise
Agreement”} currently held by COGECO US (NH-ME), LLC, d/b/a Breezeline (formerly
known as Atlantic Broadband (NH-ME), LLC), successor in interest to MetroCast Cablevigsion
of New Hampshire, LLC (the “Franchisee” or “Breezeline™), having originally commenced on
June 22, 2000, and then renewed effective January 1, 2014, upon the same terms and
conditions contained therein, for aperiod from 12:01 AM on January 1, 2024 until midnight on
December 31, 2024 (“Extension™), or until such time as the Franchise Agreement is renewed
for a longer term, whichever oceurs sooner.

This extension shall under no circuingtances be construed or deemed to be a renewal of
the Franchise Agreement under either state or federal law(s) or the terms of said Franchise
Agreement. The Town and Breezeline reserve all of their lawful rights pursnant to all
applicable state and federal laws.

This extension is subject to the terins and conditions contained in the regulations of the
FCC; the Cable communications Policy Act of 1984 (the “1984 Cable Act); the Cable
Television Consumer Protection and Competition Act of 1992 (the *“1992 Cable Act”™), as
amended, and all Town, state, and federal statutes and by-laws of general application.

Nothing herein shall be construed in any manner whatsoever as a waiver, release or
surrender of any rights that the Town and/or Breezeline may have under Section 626 and
Section 635 of the 1984 Cable Act with respect to this Extension, The Town and Breezeline
expressly reserve all rights under applicable provisions of the 1984 Cable Act, including
Section 626 and Section 635.

The Franchising Authority and Breezeline agree 1o negotiate diligently and in good faith
during the Extension period to finalize a long-lerm agreement.

[NO FURTHER TEXT ON THIS PAGE-SIGNATURE PAGE(S) TO FOLLOW]



DONAHUE, TUCKER & CIANDELLA, PLLC

ATTORNEYS AT LAwW
16 Acadia Lane
Exeter, New Hampshire 03833-4924
Telephone: (603) 778-0686
Fax: (603) 772-4454
Web Site: www.DTCLawyets.com

MEMORANDUM
To: Lakes Region Cable TV Consortium Members
From: Katherine B. Miller, Esq.
Re: Update on Renewal of Cable TV Franchise With Breezeline and Extension

~ Date: June 30, 2023

Executive Summary

This memo provides updates on the renewal negotiations with Breezeline for the
franchises held by the ten communities in the Lakes Region Cable TV Consortium
(“Consortium”), By way of brief recap, the Members of the Consortium have solicited input
from community residents regarding their cable related needs and concerns by means of a
survey. The Consortium aiso propounded extensive audit questions and follow up questions of
Breezeline regarding its performance under the current Franchise Agreements. We are now
identifying the key elements of the terms for renewal of the cable TV franchises, to develop a
template document which will then be customized for each municipality, At this time, we
recommend a one-year extension of the current franchises, due to expire December 31, 2023, to
allow us the time to complete the negotiations with Breezeline,

Customer Service Call Center Wait Time Delays

The area of greatest concern among residents, and the greatest deficiency in performance,
was the response time for customer service calls to Breezeline’s call centers. The time to reach
an operator under federal regulations and the terms of the Franchise Agreements is measured in
minutes, but many NH customers waited on hold for hours over the course of the COVID-19
pandemic. Based on that failure to meet the needs of customers or comply with the terms of the
franchises and federal rules, the Members sought to amend the current franchises to add five (5)
years to the term, and to continue the current terms (which are relatively favorable to the
municipalities), before negotiating renewal franchises. Earlier this year, Breezeline refused and
provided reports showing customer call wait times greatly improved for the end of 2022 and the
beginning of 2023.

One-Year Extensions

Breezeline counter-proposed Extensions of the current Franchise Agreements for an
additional year, until the end of 2024. Given Breezeline’s compliance at this time, the Member

1



representatives concurred that a one-year extension was reasonable. We have identified the
items for negotiation with Breezeline, but it will be beneficial for the communities to have the
terms of the current Franchise Agreements locked in for another year.

The governing bodies for each Member community will need to vote on the one-ycar
Extension, until December 31, 2024. Enclosed please find an Extension prepared for your

community. Kindly please add this to the Agenda for an upcoming meeting of your governing
body. Below are some talking points for discussing the Extension at that meeting. If the vote on

the Extension passes, kindly please have it signed and return it to our office, for our office to

send on to Breezeline. If you would like me to attend a meeting of your governing body, I would

be happy to do so.

Municipal Jurisdiction Over Cable Television

In your public meeting, there may be questions or comments about the cable TV company

and the degree of negotiating leverage the municipality has when renewing the Franchisc
Agreement with Breezeline. Below are some answers to common questions.

» Cable TV Franchise cannot be exclusive. Under federal and state law, a community may

have more than one cable operator, and several of our communities in the Lakes Region do
have two cable TV operators. Comcast operates in some, along with Breezeline, and Alton
has TDS providing cable TV services in part of the town.

Municipalities cannot negotiate over the internet services or telephone services that
Breezeline may provide in our communities, Only the cable television portion of the
business is covered by the Franchise Agreement.

Municipalities cannot negotiate the programming the cable TV company provides, or the
prices and tiers of services provided. Cable TV rates are exempt from all regulation by any
governmental entity,

The Members of the Lakes Region Cable TV Consortium are working as a group, as it
gives more leverage than negotiating separately. Terms we may negotiate include: the
length of the franchise term, the amount of franchise fees paid to the municipality, up to
5% of Breezeline’s gross revenue from the operation of the cable TV system in the
community, whether there are local access channels, carrying programming from the
municipality, and some of the other requirements for service, including the density of
homes per mile for extension of the cable system to new areas of a community.

Conclusion

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you.

Enclosure: Extension of Cable TV Franchise to December 31, 2024

SALA-ENLakes Region Cable TV Consortium {06789-0008 split bill}\2021 RENEWAL Atlantic Broadband - Breezeline

{06789-0008}\Correspondence & Memos\2023 06 30 - Lakes Region Memo to All Towns te Extension of Breezeline Cable TV

Franchises - Final.docx



1 a8eg €202/ /1 uosuyor Jayem Ag pauedald

€S

B[E35 dB)5 pUE SPEID agem o1epdrnt| | 3ejdWoD| |€202/32/2 T20Z/ST/Y 22/509/1m 7 YsIH 9[Evs afem mwmua:_ﬂwom\mw\ﬁ 7S

sEULIDA0D MORUIM quied “dinD3 pue aInjuing pajuemun aaowal| | ejedwod £Z0Z/3T/v 2Z0Z/ST/T 21/89/9H/TM USiH lleH uma] dpy 8aonids|zzoT/TT/T Mw
54

Jsumo pue| Woi Hodal si2auiBus malAal puR HSIA 3)S adwion| lezoz/se/v £2OZ/ST/Y SO8/90/TAmy ysy peoy 8Py w0 Janew 1IN mansy ez /vz/T [ o

pJecq O} UDIEPUSLLILCIS] 10} MBIABE O [ £20Z/1/2 SO8/TM ysiy 9528}3) JOJ SANU|W UO|SSAS IYqnd-uou majnay | £70T/L/L iy

sef suedosd pue Jozelsuss Jo Avjigefiene pue [eacadde Juels jeuy Supusd adL as/S08/A8/Tm wnipap QOIS "W 8 UCTIBEISU| JOJBISUBD JO UOIE|[BISU | E70T/L/L mw
Fuadoid umol Jo USyEl 2 o1 (|25 10 ozZed £20Z/1/6 SO8/93/ M [T SUIR|INg Jo0YPS JBUB) 18I0 SAOWSY | ET0Z/E/L MM

a1epdn pue 11| ug)d 12 WO SLISSILU SIB SPEOI JRUYM BUIULIBI3P ssaoadd | |£z0z/1/8 SC0Z /L oddfan/vL wnipan ssauzla|dwoo jog Adozusau; ue|d peod paaed mManay| E70T/G/S ww

SJBUUEDS JO 85N JOJ DdY YHM ]ISLUueD £20Z/1/0T spesH 1d=( wnpsin sjuswpedap [[2 ul sa)y Suluueas awnsay | £z0z/6/S MM

JOIIBIL( 32U Ylim DjiL U0 PUR PIUSIS UOISIBA 1S318| LLILJUOD ssaacad ug £20Z/1/6 a4d/vL wnipa suofdpsag uoisod ||y aiepdn pue maInsY | £202/6/S MM
uonizedpiued 2)jgnd pue sIasn JoJ JNOAR] MDU UZISIP 0 TUBYNSUOS J23s ssaooad ulf [EZ0E /8 szoz/T/L Sog9/fM ysy US{Sapa) pue INoA2| BuNssiU ||BY UMO] 21en[ead{ £20z/6/3 MM
Zuiaoadu s Aujpey sy SUIso|7 23EN|eAS ‘S3( WO UIsoUo JO Ja1s| Ssalppe ssa30i€ Ui |€20¢/1/6 €Z0Z/ST/Y a3/t [T walsAg ucoZe aBe1dag yum $aNss| SAAHN SS22ppY | E20Z/1/E MM
3@ el JaUnsap) Bulliulad ‘SIHN WOy SUIs3uod Jo 19133 ssalppe| | ssesoid o gal czoz/sely g9/ran ygIy S WO UORELS J24SUBI] UM SBNSS| SSaIppyY | £20Z/T/E MM
w=sAs 03pIA pue sa|w FulpeJsdn Joj salonb Bulem . ssaooud wl | £Z07/1/8 €207/ST/T M YEIH WaisAs punos woay Funaaw umol =pesddn|zzoz/s/TT Mm

-uolNpold Apjesm pue dmas uo JUB)RSUOD LM SUBLIOM sseooud ul| | ezoe/T/oT £Z0T/T/e NH/TA wnipaiy | JOPUSA LM J218EMaN suoesunwwo) dojeasq|zz0z/ee/TT mw

uos2as 3umould £z0z 103 Ajunwwod sziuesio ploy uo cZ0zZ/1/¢ aamU\mm\QS WNERa A siseJalul Usples Ajunwio’ aziuedlG|ZzZ0z,/6/8 MM

233 ‘suoljejuasald oapIA 1an3jsmau Ajglucwl/iengal 10} Peslued e ooyl | ssecoid ul €zZ07/ST/8 ZT0Z/9z/% sog/TM e SUSZID 03 suonesunwwo) aaodwi|zz0z/ST/e MM
{14 SMOLIEN PUR (d 40O JBLade|ds. J0 s1UBWBA0IG W] 1oy suondo Sulwisisp ssa00ad 1| [€Z0Z/TE/ZT z20Z/T/6 D35/5r/508/ ™ WNIp3A sanl|iaed 3413 pue 221|104 JO§ sUoRN|os/sucndo [2z0z/E/T MM
Auedwod Suneisuad Jejos 01 pue| asead| o1 suopdo aag| | ssan0xd agl zznz/1/e M : winpPa Apadolg uma] ue suondo Aelny Je(og s1e3iseau)|Zz0g/ST/T MM

“wwod Ajages 3y Suipuad 3500 puB UCREBULIGI 10} ITINOSIBA] PEIN0D vaL TTOZ/TE/T A y2iy SUOIIDBSIAIU| {7 "1y J0] ﬂ__,mm.._ o415 EB1IssAU | TZ0T/FT/ZT w ”
WaLRuEe FuNSMe Puap® O3 au|[9Zaalg Y1pm SLI0BUD SUOISSNISID ssadoud wi| [vZ0Z/TE/ZT || €20Z/TE/ZT JIUBAY/SOF/ M MO| S532044 [eMaUSy Juswasidy asiyoueld AL 2iqeD] TZ0Z/ST/T ww
219idwod 1un TZ0z/ST/50 SuluwBaq s8unsa sog Yoes SULNp manal ssao0ud Uy 3uio8 uo ITOT/T/6 rm/sog LINIpSA SBDUBUIPJQ PUE SBIDJ|04 UMOL JO MIIADY Te0e/s/t Mw
"218 "UOISSILL SSNDSIP O] $3S1WLICT pue SpI2oq f[e J0 Sulasw e szjuedic adgL ¢Z-idy S04,/ 1A wnipapy SPITUWIWIOY JC SIUBIDIUCD & 321UREI0 | [Z0Z/ET/F M
S3(G WO SUONEPUDILIGIDI JO JD135] SS2ippE asl 120Z/1/6 a5/ T WnIpain BDUION $3J Weg puod YIND Ss2U4ppviTZ0Z/67/9 omF

sisumo Ausdold Aq uoipe |e8s| ‘SoURISISSE [0 ou| | sseooud u| Vel 16a/40/Th [BE:TE: |nss| sfeulelg UCHIBSIZ| F1Y pue IS Mogd|TZ0Z/01/9 M

BIEINDIE puR 188[0 UOISSIWL/2BIRYD $t "PapaaU ||3S Al SUIULISISp ssacoud uy adl Teoz/oe/s SOg/rA yaiH s831ey) JI9Y L PUB SSINILRUCT (| JO MaIAaY pJeoq|Tzoz/ce/c w

S90N SIEG ared 9 (5)eouatssy [243 3B pASIT AR v

PoSIADY angy ALIonrg €

355BwRN 8E], TONenSIILpY PUE pIeog 10008 ¢

£70Z/£0/L0 p3repdn POOMYLION JO UMoT | L

N i f ] H 3 4 3 a ) ] ] v




Z ofey 707 /L/1 vosuyof Jsyem Ag pRiedald
22009 WO [[EWa QYE S0IHC SIN WSISAS JaJBS 0] SA0W M| | 918|GW0) | | ¢20e/ST/6 || 2e0e/t/0T ABISUIBIALTTA TIGET HEWS M3U O uopetius uswedw puz §3euIpJoc]|zzoz/cT/L [o0L
SO0 PUe [0 Y3m 320m S31[WwiI02 JoLd 33epdn pue maiasd| | 33s]dwod Zeoz/1/8 TZ0Z/ 19 99/S08/TM walpan Apnig Ayages ¥ a0y | CZ0Z R/ ”mw
USWLIBACE (B0 BuipieSal sushedxel yum uoisses v 3 D usdo 18|dwo] zzoe/feT/L 508/95/ T/ wrpay DIROG |00YDS UM UOISSaS v g D 2I|14Nd | ZZ20z/5T/¢ MMW
$IFRWRS? Ao1IC pue suoirdo uFissp 1B yoo| | aledwe) 20/ vels z20Z/9Z/v S0g,/93/T/m Y34 2115 ||EH umo Joj uSiS aBessa man Uoiessay|zz0z/S1/E mw”
sarepdn 1o) gog/mig soueldwod 1oy [e8s] AQ pamsinaa Aojjod JuaLinz saeH eedwon| [zzoz/ar/e TZOT/ST/¥ 509/rMn yFH Aatjod [pUUOSIS P1epdn pue malnay | TZ0Z/ST/T mm
"spury patedPRURUN 2SIL 95N 03 mOY UO Idu) o)qnd Supees| | s1sdwod| (Zg0e/7e/s ZZ0e/0L/s 509/ rm PERY Spuny ydyy j0 950 Jo1 BukeaH mgnd|T1z02/8z2/6 Mm
Sres arempley ‘uoelead weaFoad ‘seaoead pue sep)jod moasy syidwod| (zz0z/Te/T 1ZOT/ST/r | | Aeasuein/3D/ran YBiH uolPa1044 AN2ag 43gAD alepdn pue malAsY | TZ0Z/6/E WM
1an0 23uaya §jny 61 Joud swziFold uepunpad uny| | maydwod| [Z20e/T/T TZ0Z/ST/2T SLA/TANAD Y SIBAOS BIURLL MON UM ,3AT, 0] TZ0Z/6T/0T MM
SLIA 01 pun-osd wouy elep Suugpsuer) uidaq slejdwon| | TZ07/SL/ZT | | TeoT/ST/0T ST YER] [FE:ITES BIEMUOS SIUBUI] MBN 0F uorsuei uswedw) | Tz0z/6T/0T n_.um
3(dwo) TZ0e/v/CT S/32/TAn FET 198p0g UMOL L0 matnaY 09| T20¢/7¢/8 MM
0z/Z uo Bueaw Yo Jewwns/Buds sie) ul uiSsq o3 sseocad| | s19|dwic) TZ0Z/TE/TT || DdMDS/an/tm UsIiH wialsAg JUBLWISSRUBIN SD0BUNG PeOY maN 338/dWod | TZ0T/v/T MM
29 o1 syped oju)1e3png| | s18)dwod 1Z0T/8T/1T 30/im YSiH 8 03 LcnRnguUisip Joj 57 01198pNg S04 J3AIRA| TZ0Z/¥T/8 ww
dn deim Z/TIT '92/0T ] UCISS3DI0M GT/0T SUOISERS OM ] a@dwo) Sa10U F9% I/ TAM/SHA ysiy S0d 01 sUClElUEsald 188png pesH uswiedag .HNON\.VN\m MM
62/v uo Auedwos uBissp/f1soy yum pamnpsyas Sunsaw} | e1e|dwod| [TZ0zZ/S1/6 TZ0Z/T/8 H2I5/508/TM wnipain S)sgam umo] anoldul] pue xepdn| TE0r/5T/T mw
213/dwo) TZ0Z/2T/oT SpesHA/30/TM ysiH 508 .8 123png TTAd V1L JBAIRA| TTOZ/VZ/2 M
UOISSILLILIOD I3Y'WODUCY “SOH/M 151 WIYUe) pue sniels suiwaelap| | ewpdwo)| |TT0z/9T/0T || T20Z/08/8 509/ PETY Autadosd PRUMD UMGL B|Ge[IeAY JO UOIDNY JO BjeS|  TZ0Z/S/T M
SUOILIISAI YLM staninge o1 sjes asnoy-u| | a1sdwo] 1Z/5T80 W/S08/Tam BTl 8|ES JaLINQY ALSCCId PRUMO UMOL|TZOZ/0T/8 M
a391dwic) 120Z/ve/R LIN/598/Th UBiH ISEAOU] S31eY Fauenquiy Suipieday SuuesH 31qnd| TZ0Z/0T/8 M
[ie19p 195png uan auy Suisanbal spesy wswpedzsp 03 a8exoed anss) ETEJGOTGR) 1Z0zZ/E1/6 HE1S/3D/TA [T $59304d Uoneaedald 198png Zz AL UIBg|Te0z/v/8 M
gl uonezo| ‘TZ/9T/OT F3ep Uomany| | S33jdwo)d Te0e/91/0T HeIS/s0g/IMm Y31y J38UCIDNY YUM UOIIINY J1|gnd 331BUIPI0CD | TZOZ/F/] Mw
sduwzed y7 AsraeH % poomypoN 03 sjusiuaaoldi Yaiessse awdwod| 1Tz0z/T/6 120Z/3/L $3A/\LCIUOD/TA e sdwe) JROQ JO BOLHPUOS 31eNeA | TZ0Z/L/S MN
0Z0T/TO 10 SSUIpUlL §3Q sSauppe ‘dIYsIaumo JUIULIZIEP s1e|dwod| (Tzoz/i/e Teoz/st/e A [E=IT diysisumg wieq =yet Asnel s1e8i3seAuli TZ0Z/L/S Mw
suoIDe|a §je 204 Ji2Y ysied jo asn ysiqeiso-ad| | a9pdwo) Ze0e/e/8 SO9/TM T 100UDS URY1 JAYI0 SUOIIDR]e JOL DNUSA ML S1RUIPI00D | ZZ0Z/2T/L MM
ares Juswdinbs smidins 10} uozone opgnd sziuesig| | s1s1dWwony ZZ0T/T/1T E/TM Y3iH 3jes Jewdinbz snjdins pnpuol|zzZ0T/ST/6 Mw
{EDLNDB]8 S30P UMOL “AiaaI[sp $4M O - 6 ST/ padepao uBis| | =1eidwo) | | €20Z/0Z/T || C20¢/9z/r s0g/a3/tm yaH BUS ||eH UMOL JOj UBS 958sSa1n MaN [1Sul[z20Z/5 /e MM
J8yays AusBiawa 10} NOW dO[SASP €1 QNI PUB LiWpe [OOYDS/M oM sle|dwod| |€Z0Z/FT/T 1Z0Z/1/0T Sog/Aa/TM winipap J2)2ys AouaB1ailg 1a] [00UIS YA N0 doRASA | TZ0Z/7/8 MM
ZZ/T/Z1 AQ siempiey Japic 01 pasu ‘€707 AslA saiidxe poddns fuelsem| | a19(dwos STOES /Y ABISUIBIN/TAA udiH 1aAl8S 121N4WoD) a0 umo L e day [ZZ0z/4T/0T Mm
N 1 r H 3 4 a ] v




